# Minutes – APPROVED Claims and Appeals Committee July 20, 2021 – 2:00 p.m. Zoom

Present: Bud Shattuck, Don Fischer, Tanya DiGennaro, Tom Brown, Donna Dawson

(arrived at 2:14 p.m.)

Staff/Guests: Elin Dowd, Executive Director; Michelle Cocco, Clerk of the Board; Kylie

Rodrigues, Benefits Specialist; Steve Locey, Rob Spenard, Locey & Cahill

### Call to Order

Mr. Shattuck, Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:06 p.m.

### **Changes to the Agenda**

There were no changes to the agenda.

#### Approval of Minutes of May 24, 2021

It was MOVED by Mr. Fischer, seconded by Ms. DiGennaro, and unanimously adopted by voice vote by members present to approve the minutes of May 24, 2021 as submitted. MINTUES APPROVED.

#### **Executive Director Report**

Ms. Dowd introduced Kylie Rodrigues, Benefits Specialist for the Consortium. She said the Consortium is frequently contacted by members with what they initially believe is an appeal; however, these are primarily communications to confirm and clarifiy benefits. Anything that turns into an official appeal will be presented to the Committee.

Ms. Dowd reported the Consortium will be doing strategic planning this Fall that will begin at the Executive Committee level. She is in the process of interviewing facilitators who will help with that process. The Board of Directors will hold a remote educational session in August and a formal Board meeting in September. Information presented in August is based on the results of the survey conducted of Directors and will focus on benefit plans, Article 47 information, and the 2022 Budget. The September meeting will be in-person at the Tompkins County Public Library. Ms. Dowd said there are efforts underway to petition the State Legislature to amend the New York State Open Meetings Law to allow the Zoom link to be a location; however, nothing has been approved to date.

Ms. Dowd reported she received feedback from the Department of Financial Services on the Consortium's request for a new Certificate of Authority to operate in nine additional counties. She was informed the approval has moved to the Department's General Counsel; she expects a final response soon. There are three municipalities outside the Consortium's current region that have expressed in joining in 2022; there are few within the current region that have inquired about membership.

Ms. Dawson arrived at this time.

### **Medical Claims Audit Update**

Ms. Dowd reported the audit is coming to a close and asked Mr. Locey to provide an overview of the status. Mr. Locey said there were 27 items left over from the audit that had

outstanding questions related to adjudication. Following discussions with Excellus and BMI and a review of each of the claims by Locey and Cahill, most of those claims have been resolved. There are a couple of cases where the plan document has to match the way that Excellus is adjudicating claims; that is being taken care of by Locey and Cahill through a refiling of plan documents with the Department of Financial Services. At this time there is no additional work by the Consortium needed and Locey and Cahill recommends acceptance of the final report from BMI noting there are a couple of items that need to be cleaned up.

Ms. Dowd commented that the 2018 audit resulted in some claims that were paid in error in favor of a member. In anticipation of possible questions from members as to why the same coverage for those claims will not be in place going forward, members will be contacted and will be informed that they had a claim that was paid in error and they are not responsible; however, the benefit will be paid correctly going forward. Also, some of the wording that needs to be clarified in the plan document is not a change in benefit but a clarification or how Excellus is to adjudicate the claim.

Mr. Shattuck said he feels the audit went smoothly this year due to both the Consortium's staffing resources as well as Locey & Cahill.

It was MOVED by Mr. Fischer, seconded by Ms. DiGennaro, and unanimously adopted by voice vote by members present, to approve the following resolution and submit to the Executive Committee:

## RESOLUTION NO. - 2021 – ACCEPTANCE OF 2018 AND 2019 MEDICAL CLAIMS AUDIT REPORT

WHEREAS, the New York State Department of Financial Services during its initial audit recommended that the Consortium conduct periodic medical claims audits, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 008 of 2020 the Board of Directors authorized a contract with BMI Audit Services to perform a medical claims audit to ensure medical claims are paid by Excellus are in accordance with benefit plan documents, Federal and State Laws, Rules, and Regulations, and industry standard practices, and

WHEREAS, BMI has completed the medical claims audit and presented the final report to the Claims and Appeals Committee, now therefore be it

RESOLVED, on recommendation of the Claims and Appeals Committee, That the Executive Committee, on behalf of the Board of Directors, accepts the final audit report presented by BMI on 2018 and 2019 Medical Claims.

### Appeal Process

\* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

Ms. Dowd explained at the last meeting the Committee reviewed an appeals process flow chart that was developed based on a narrative that was in place. When the flow chart was presented for review by Excellus they sent their flow chart that included an additional piece of information relating to filing a complaint related to service or care. She agreed with Mr. Shattuck that having more information on a public-facing document is better. Mr. Shattuck spoke in favor of a flow chart including a direct phone number to both Excellus and ProAct. Ms. Dowd said the two documents will be combined into one document.

Ms. Dowd informed the committee that ProAct states that a majority of Prior Authorization and Step Therapy approvals happen without most knowing. The Consortium finds out when it doesn't happen well; the prior approval appeal process happens with the physician or pharmacy going back to ProAct and not the individual member. ProAct would like the Consortium to do more education on members not leaving the pharmacy if they are told something is denied; they should be asking for more information and asking them to contact the physician and ProAct while still in the pharmacy to try to get the process moving along. Mr. Brown encouraged the Consortium to post as much of this information as possible on its website. Mr. Shattuck asked that the Committee also receive a final copy of the flow chart at its next meeting.

#### Prescription Benefit Management (PBM) Audit

Ms. Dowd said a decision has not yet been made on whether the Consortium will be making a change in its provider of prescription benefit management services. At this time the years 2019 and 2020 need to be audited before proceeding with a new contract; she recommended moving forward with this audit and if a change is made the 2021 audit can be added to the contract. She has contacted BMI which has done prior audits and received a quotation for the same price as the last contract (\$33,000) and asked for direction from the Committee in allowing this audit to proceed. She also noted the Operations Committee is looking at when the Consortium should issue an RFP (Request for Proposals) for all contracts; therefore, this service may be put out to bid for the next audit.

Ms. Dowd reported there were eight responses to the RFP for Prescription Benefit Management Services; the Subcommittee selected four companies to do pricing based on the current list of drugs and has narrowed the list to three that will be interviewed tomorrow.

# RESOLUTION NO. \_\_\_\_ - 2021 - AUTHORIZING CONTRACT FOR PRESCRIPTION DRUG CLAIMS AUDIT WITH BMI- 2019 AND 2020 CLAIMS

It was MOVED by Ms. DiGennaro, seconded by Mr. Fischer, and unanimously adopted by voice vote by members present, to approve the following resolution and submit to the Executive Committee:

WHEREAS, the Consortium has determined there is value in conducting periodic medical and prescription drug claims audits, and

WHEREAS, the Consortium's has developed a pattern of conducting these claims audits on alternate years for medical one year and then pharmaceutical claims the next and

WHEREAS, the Consortium is now prepared to undertake a prescription drug claims audit as part of its fiduciary responsibility to ensure claims paid by ProAct are in accordance with the benefit plan documents, Federal and State Laws, Rules, and Regulations, and industry standard practices for the years 2019 and 2020 and

WHEREAS, in anticipation of initiating a prescription drug claims audit the Executive Director has obtained a contract proposal from BMI Audit Services, now therefore be it

RESOLVED, on recommendation of the Claims and Appeals Committee, That the Executive Committee, on behalf of the Board of Directors, hereby authorizes the Consortium to engage the firm of BMI to perform an audit of the Consortium's prescription drug claims for an amount not to exceed \$35,000.

\* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

Claims and Appeals Committee July 20, 2021

### **Next Meeting**

The Committee scheduled the next meeting for September 14<sup>th</sup> at 1 p.m. At that time the Committee will review the updated flow charts and will receive an update on the prescription drug claims audit.

### <u>Adjournment</u>

The meeting adjourned at 2:46 p.m.